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Will Loomis, (“Loomis”), by and through his attorneys of record, complains against 

Jessica Cornish (“Jessie J”), Universal Music Group, Inc., Lava Records LLC, Universal 

Republic Records, and DOES 1 through 10 (collectively, “Defendants”) as follows: 

 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

1. This is a civil action against Defendants for their acts of copyright 

infringement in violation of the United States Copyright Act, 17 U.S.C. §§ 101 et seq.  This 

Court has subject matter jurisdiction over the copyright infringement under 28 U.S.C. § 

1331, 17 U.S.C. § 501(a), and 28 U.S.C. § 1338(a).   

2. Venue is proper in this District under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391(b) and (c) and 28 

U.S.C. § 1400(a) in that the claim arises in this Judicial District, the Defendants may be 

found and transact business in this Judicial District, and the injury suffered by Plaintiff took 

place in this Judicial District.  Defendants are subject to the general and specific personal 

jurisdiction of this Court because of their contacts with the State of California.    

3. On information and belief, Defendants all directly sell or benefit from the 

direct sale of product in this state and judicial district, and perform or otherwise work in 

this state and judicial district. 

 

PARTIES 

4. Plaintiff Loomis is an individual residing in Montecito, California. 

5. Plaintiff is informed and believes and, upon such, alleges that Jessica Cornish 

is an individual residing in the United Kingdom.  

6. Plaintiff is informed and believes and, upon such, alleges that Universal Music 

Group, Inc. is a Delaware corporation, with its principal place of business in Santa Monica, 

California.   

7. Plaintiff is informed and believes and, upon such, alleges that Lava Records is 

a Delaware limited liability company, with its principal place of business in New York, 

NY.   
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8. Plaintiff is informed and believes and, upon such, alleges that Universal 

Republic Records is a business, form unknown, with its principal place of business in New 

York, NY.   

9. DOES 1 through 10, inclusive, are unknown to Plaintiff, who therefore sues 

said Defendants by such fictitious names.  Plaintiff will ask leave of Court to amend this 

Complaint and insert the true names and capacities of said Defendants when the same have 

been ascertained.  Plaintiff is informed and believes and, upon such, alleges that each of the 

Defendants designated herein as a “DOE” is legally responsible in some manner for the 

events and happenings herein alleged, and that Plaintiff’s damages as alleged herein were 

proximately caused by such Defendants. 

 

STATEMENT OF FACTS  

The Composition Forming the Subject Matter of This Dispute 

10. Will Loomis is a rising star in the music business.  After releasing their first 

EP, Loomis’ band, Loomis and the Lust, quickly gained nationwide recognition.  The 

group was named one of the “Top 25 New Bands in the World” by MTV Iggy, won an 

MTVU “Freshman” video award, and was bestowed OurStage.com/New Music Seminar’s 

coveted title of "Artist on the Verge.”  In addition to the frequent touring, radio play, and 

social media outlets, the band’s songs can be heard on popular TV shows, including NCIS 

LA and Blue Mountain State. 

11. The song at issue, “Bright Red Chords,” (hereinafter, the “Composition”) is 

among Loomis’ most popular.  It was written in 2008 and rapidly gained popularity.   

12. Loomis registered the Composition with the US Copyright Office on October 

10, 2008 and was given Registration No. Pau003479101. 

The Defendants and the Marketplace 

13. The Defendants rank among today’s most successful musicians, producers, 

and labels in the pop music category.   
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14. Jessie J is a veritable pop music superstar.  She has sold over 11 million 

singles and 2.5 million records worldwide—an incredible, meteoric rise to fame in a 

relatively young career.   

15. Her release of “Domino” took place on or around August 16, 2011 and was 

met with tremendous success.  The single was number one on the UK Singles Chart, 

number 5 on Australia’s ARIA Charts, and certified platinum in sales by the Recording 

Industry Association of American on February 7, 2012.   

16. On information and belief, “Domino” was purportedly written by Jessie J, Dr. 

Luke, Claude Kelly, Max Martin, and Henry Russell Walter.  Dr. Luke and Henry Russell 

Walter also purportedly produced the track.   

17. On information and belief, defendants Lava Records LLC and Universal 

Republic Records signed Jessie J as part of a joint venture and remained the label of record 

at all times relevant to the infringement at issue.   

18. On information and belief, defendant Universal Republic Records is owned by 

defendant Universal Music Group, Inc. 

19. Despite their immense economic resources and sophistication on basic matters 

of intellectual property law, Defendants have, on information and belief, violated federal 

law by willfully infringing the copyrights of Loomis in his song “Bright Red Chords.”  

Specifically, in or around August, 2011, Defendants reproduced and distributed “Domino,” 

a song comprised of substantially similar compositional elements to the Composition, and a 

derivative thereof, without permission, consent, or license from Loomis, the rightsholder to 

the Composition.   

20. Defendants’ reproduction and distribution of the Composition, and derivative 

thereof, continues unabated to this very day. 

21. In the marketplace, Defendants’ infringing work carries tremendous monetary 

value.  Defendants have sold millions of copies of their derivative work, which translates 

into significant ill-gotten commercial advantage and revenue generation for Defendants as 

a direct consequence of their infringing actions.  
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22. Defendants’ infringement of the Composition irreparably harmed the 

exclusive nature of the work and substantial monetary value for its author. 

 

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

(Copyright Infringement, 17 U.S.C. § 501) 

23. Plaintiff Loomis incorporates here by reference the allegations in paragraphs 1 

through 24 above. 

24. Loomis is the owner of the copyrights to the Composition, which substantially 

consists of material wholly original with Plaintiff and which constitutes copyright subject 

matter under the laws of the United States.  Loomis has complied in all respects with the 

Copyright Act and all of the laws of the United States governing copyrights.  The 

Composition has been timely registered with the United States Copyright Office and 

received Registration No. Pau003479101. 

25. Defendants have directly, vicariously and/or contributorily infringed, and 

unless enjoined, will continue to infringe Loomis’ copyrights by reproducing and 

distributing and utilized the Composition for purposes of trade in violation of 17 U.S.C. § 

501 et seq.  

26. Defendants have willfully infringed, and unless enjoined, will continue to 

infringe Loomis’ copyrights by knowingly reproducing, distributing and utilizing the 

Composition and a derivative thereof for purposes of trade.   

27. These acts of infringement are willful because, inter alia, the Defendants are 

sophisticated professional in the music industry with full knowledge of the strictures of 

federal copyright law and the basic requirements for licensing the use of copyrighted 

content for commercial exploitation.  Indeed, Defendants demand nothing less of entities 

who use their copyrighted content.   

28. Defendants reproduced and distributed the infringing composition, “Domino,” 

through numerous channels of trade internationally. 
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29. Defendants have received substantial benefits in connection with the 

unauthorized reproduction, distribution and utilization of the Composition for purposes of 

trade, including chart-topping record sales, among other things. 

30. The actions of Defendants were and are continuing to be performed without 

the permission, license or consent of Loomis. 

31. The wrongful acts of Defendants have caused, and are causing, great injury to 

Plaintiff, of which damages cannot be accurately computed, and unless this Court restrains 

Defendants from further commission of said acts, Loomis will suffer irreparable injury, all 

of which it is without an adequate remedy at law.  Accordingly, Plaintiff seeks a 

declaration that Defendants are infringing Loomis’ copyrights and an order under 17 

U.S.C. § 502 enjoining Defendants from any further infringement of Plaintiff’s copyrights. 

32. As a result of the acts of Defendants alleged herein, Loomis has suffered and 

is suffering substantial damage to his business in the form of diversion of trade, loss of 

profits, injury to goodwill and reputation, and the dilution of the value of its rights, all of 

which are not yet fully ascertainable. 

33. Because of the willful nature of the copyright infringement, Plaintiff is entitled 

to an award of statutory damages equal to $150,000 per work infringed.   

34. Plaintiff has identified at least one work infringed by Defendants, which 

occurred by way of reproduction and public distribution of the Composition through 

myriad sales channels.  

35. The Composition infringed is eligible for statutory damages.  Therefore, 

Loomis is entitled to an award of $150,000 in statutory damages.  

36. Alternatively, at Plaintiff’s discretion, Loomis is entitled to actual damages in 

an amount to be proven at trial for the infringement of the Composition. 

37. Plaintiff is also entitled to attorney’s fees in prosecuting this action. 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff requests judgment against Defendants as follows: 

1. The Defendants, their officers, agents, servants, employees, 

representatives, and attorneys, and all person in active concert or participation with them, 

be permanently enjoined from designing, copying, reproducing, displaying, promoting, 

advertising, distributing, or selling, or any other form of dealing or transaction in, any and 

all advertising and promotional materials, print media, signs, Internet websites, or any other 

media, either now known or hereafter devised, bearing any design or mark which infringe, 

contributorily infringe, or vicariously infringe upon Plaintiff’s rights in the Composition. 

2. Defendants be held liable to Plaintiff in statutory damages for copyright 

infringement, including willful infringement, in accordance with 17 U.S.C. §§ 504(a)(2) & 

(c) and for costs, interest and reasonable attorney’s fees pursuant to 17 U.S.C. § 505. 

3. An accounting be made for all profits, income, receipts or other benefit 

derived by Defendants from the reproduction, copying, display, promotion, distribution or 

sale of products and services, or other media, either now known or hereafter devised, that 

improperly or unlawfully infringes upon Plaintiff’s copyrights pursuant to 17 U.S.C. §§ 

504 (a)(1) & (b). 

4. Requiring Defendants to account for and pay over to Plaintiff all profits 

derived by Defendants from their acts of copyright infringement and to reimburse Plaintiff 

for all damages suffered by Plaintiff by reasons of Defendant’s acts, pursuant to 17 U.S.C. 

§§ 504 (a)(1) & (b). 

5. Actual damages for copyright infringement pursuant to 17 U.S.C. §§ 

504 (a)(1) & (b). 

6. That Plaintiff be awarded any such other and further relief as the Court 

may deem just and appropriate. 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 
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Dated:  June 25, 2012 ONE LLP 
 

By:  
 Christopher W. Arledge 

Peter R. Afrasiabi, Esq. 
Ian H. Gibson, Esq. 
Attorneys for Plaintiff, Will Loomis 
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DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

Plaintiff Will Loomis hereby demands trial by jury of all issues so triable under the 

law. 

 

Dated:  June 25, 2012 ONE LLP 
 

By:  
 Christopher W. Arledge 

Peter R. Afrasiabi, Esq. 
Ian H. Gibson, Esq. 
Attorneys for Plaintiff, Will Loomis 
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